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October 31, 2023 
 
 
Sent by email 
Peter Hoe Burling 
20 Lang Road 
Cornish, NH  03745 
 
 Re: Right to Know re Troy Merner 
 
Dear Mr. Burling: 
 
The purpose of this letter is to respond to your RSA 91-A right-to-know requests dated 
October 16, 2023, which you emailed to the New Hampshire Attorney General’s Office 
(the “State”). 
 
Specifically, you requested the following records:  
 

1. All documents which communicated any of the information contained in your 
September 18, 2023, and which were directed to any of the following members of 
the NH House of Representatives: Speaker Sherman Packard, Majority Leader 
Jason Osborne, Deputy Speaker Steven Smith, Rep. Laurie Sanborn, and 
Representative Robert Lynn, 
 

2. Any documents such as memos, notes, phone logs etc. reflecting or documenting 
the communication of such information to those members of the House. 

 
3. All documents communicating or documenting the communication of any of the 

information contained in your September 18 letter to any staff member of the NH 
House of Representatives.  

 
You clarified that the scope of your request was limited to between March 22, 2023, and 
September 18, 2023.  
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As set forth in greater detail below, responsive records are exempt from disclosure under 
the law enforcement records exemption set forth in Murray v. N.H. Div. of State Police, 
154 N.H. 579 (2006), because the documents were compiled for law enforcement 
purposes and disclosure could reasonably be expected to interfere with enforcement 
proceedings or constitute an invasion of privacy. Responsive records would additionally 
be exempt from disclosure under RSA 91-A:5, IV (exempting from disclosure documents 
the disclosure of which would constitute an invasion of privacy); RSA 91-A:5, IX 
(exempting from disclosure preliminary drafts, notes, memoranda, and other documents 
not in their final form); and RSA 91-A:5, XII (exempting from disclosure records 
protected under the attorney-client privilege and work product doctrine). 
 
As described in this Office’s September 18, 2023, letter to Speaker Packard, this Office’s 
criminal investigation into former representative Merner is ongoing. To the extent that 
this Office communicated with any representative or staff member of the New Hampshire 
House of Representatives as part of its ongoing criminal investigation, disclosure of that 
information could interfere with ongoing enforcement proceedings by revealing 
investigative information, including the identities of potential witnesses.   
 
Additionally, private individuals, whether they are suspects or witnesses, have a strong 
interest in not being associated unwarrantedly with alleged criminal activity. This is 
particularly true for individuals who provide information to law enforcement agencies 
because those individuals could be subjected to embarrassment and harassment for their 
cooperation with law enforcement agencies. Public policy requires that individuals may 
furnish investigative information to the government with complete candor and without 
the understandable tendency to hedge or withhold information out of fear that their names 
and the information they provide will later be open to the public.  Accordingly, disclosure 
of communications between this Office and any representative or staff member would 
reasonably be expected to constitute an invasion of privacy. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
/s/ Matthew Conley   
Matthew G. Conley 
Assistant Attorney General 
Civil Bureau 
(603) 271-6765 
matthew.g.conley@doj.nh.gov 
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